
 

1 

 
 
 

 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
Tuesday, 7th December, 2021 
 
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Overview & Scrutiny Committee, which will 
be held at:  
 

Council Chamber - Civic Offices 
on Tuesday, 7th December, 2021 

at 7.00 pm. 
 Georgina Blakemore 

Chief Executive 
 

Democratic Services 
Officer: 

Vivienne Messenger   Tel: (01992) 564243 
Email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors M Sartin (Chairman), R Jennings (Vice-Chairman), R Baldwin, P Bhanot, 
P Bolton, I Hadley, S Heather, J Lea, A Lion, T Matthews, S Murray, D Plummer, 
S Rackham, P Stalker, J H Whitehouse, K Williamson and D Wixley 
 

 
PLEASE NOTE THAT THIS MEETING IS OPEN TO ALL MEMBERS TO ATTEND 

SUBSTITUTE NOMINATION DEADLINE 18:00 
 

 
 

WEBCASTING NOTICE 
 
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy and copies made available to those who request it.. 
 
Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 
wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper council chamber 
public gallery area 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Public Relations Manager 
on 01992 564039. 



Overview & Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 7 December 2021 
 

2 

 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION   
 

  The Chairman will read the following announcement: 
 
This meeting is to be webcast and the Chairman will read the following 
announcement: 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
internet and will be capable of subsequent repeated viewing, with copies of the 
recording being made available for those that request it. 
 
By being present at this meeting, it is likely that the recording cameras will capture 
your image and this will result in your image becoming part of the broadcast. 
 
You should be aware that this may infringe your human and data protection rights, and 
if you have any concerns then please speak to the Webcasting Officer. 
 
Please could I also remind Members and Officers to activate their microphones before 
speaking.” 
 

 2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 3. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS   
 

  To report the appointment of any substitute members for the meeting. 
 

 4. MINUTES  (Pages 5 - 12) 
 

  To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 18 November 2021. 
 

 5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  To declare interests in any item on the agenda. 
 
In considering whether to declare a pecuniary or a non-pecuniary interest under the 
Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are requested to pay particular attention to 
paragraph (11) of the Code in addition to the more familiar requirements. 
 
This requires the declaration of a non-pecuniary interest in any matter before 
Overview & Scrutiny which relates to a decision of or action by another Committee or 
Sub-Committee of the Council, a Joint Committee or Joint Sub-Committee in which the 
Council is involved and of which the Councillor is also a Member. 
 
Paragraph (11) of the Code of Conduct does not refer to Cabinet decisions or 
attendance at an Overview & Scrutiny meeting purely for the purpose of answering 
questions or providing information on such a matter. 
 

 6. PUBLIC QUESTIONS & REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE   

 
  (Democratic & Electoral Services Team Manager) To receive questions submitted by 

members of the public and any requests to address the Committee, in accordance 
with Article 6 (Overview and Scrutiny) of the Council’s Constitution.  



Overview & Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 7 December 2021 
 

3 

(a) Public Questions 
 
Members of the public may ask questions of the Chairman of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee at ordinary meetings of the Committee, in accordance with the procedure 
set out in the Constitution. 

 
(b) Requests to address the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Any member of the public or a representative of another organisation may address the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on any agenda item (except those dealt with in 
private session as exempt or confidential business), due to be considered at the 
meeting. 
 

 7. PRINCESS ALEXANDRA HOSPITAL - PROGRESS ON DEVELOPMENT OF THE 
NEW HOSPITAL AND CQC REPORT  (Pages 13 - 14) 

 
  The Executive Team will be attending the meeting regarding the development of the 

new hospital of the PAH NHS Trust and in respect of the Care Quality Commission 
report recently published (see report attached). 
 

 8. PROPOSED EPPING FOREST DISTRICT MARKET POLICY  (Pages 15 - 40) 
 

  To comment and make recommendations on the attached draft Market Policy. 
 

 9. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion  
Democratic & Electoral Services Team Manager) To consider whether, under Section 
100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded 
from the meeting for the items of business set out below on grounds that they will 
involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the following 
paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act (as amended) or are confidential 
under Section 100(A)(2): 
 

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

Nil Nil Nil 
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Background Papers   
(Democratic & Electoral Services Team Manager) Article 17 - Access to Information, 
Procedure Rules of the Constitution define background papers as being documents 
relating to the subject matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 



Overview & Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 7 December 2021 
 

4 

(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 
include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information and in respect of executive reports, the advice of any political 
advisor. 

 
The Council will make available for public inspection for four years after the date of the 
meeting one copy of each of the documents on the list of background papers. 
 

 



EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MINUTES 

 
Committee: Overview & Scrutiny Committee Date: Thursday, 18 November 

2021 
    
Place: Council Chamber - Civic Offices Time: 7.00 - 8.50 pm 
  
Members 
Present: 

Councillors M Sartin (Chairman) R Jennings (Vice-Chairman) R Baldwin, 
P Bolton, S Heather, J Lea, A Lion, T Matthews, S Murray, S Rackham, 
J Share-Bernia, P Stalker, J H Whitehouse and D Wixley 

  
Other 
Councillors: 

Councillors L Burrows, H Kane, S Kane, C McCredie, A Patel and 
H Whitbread 

  
Apologies: Councillors P Bhanot, I Hadley and K Williamson 
  
Officers 
Present: 

G Blakemore (Chief Executive), N Dawe (Chief Operating Officer), A Small 
(Strategic Director Corporate and 151 Officer), G Woodhall (Team Manager - 
Democratic & Electoral Services), C Graham (Project Team Manager 
(Performance)), I Braddick (Garden Town Liaison Lead), N Polaine (Harlow 
and Gilston Garden Town Director), V Messenger (Democratic Services 
Officer), A Hendry (Democratic Services Officer) and A Buckley (Higher 
Level Apprentice (Internal Communications)) 

  

 

51. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman reminded everyone present that the meeting would be broadcast live 
to the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the webcasting of its 
meetings. 
 

52. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS  
 
The Committee noted that Councillor J Share-Bernia had been appointed as a 
substitute for Councillor K Williamson. 
 

53. MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 12 October 2021 be taken as read 
and signed by the Chairman as a correct record, subject to the following 
amendment: 
 

 Minute no 48 (a) Current work programme, (ii) New items 
(Unaffordable rents) – to replace ‘in respect of communities’ with 
‘on behalf of a member unable to attend’ to read: “Councillor  
J H Whitehouse said this question was on behalf of a member 
unable to attend because she had been made aware…” 

 
The Chairman, Councillor M Sartin, reminded members that the climate change 
action plan public consultation (Minute no 43) would close on 26 November 2021 at 
17.00. It was hosted on the Council website home page along with the action plan 
document and frequently asked questions. At the Civic Offices Reception, there was 
also a leaflet available which explained how paper copies could be obtained, if 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



Overview & Scrutiny Committee  18 November 2021 

required. Comments could be emailed to climatechange@eppingforestdc.gov.uk or 
posted to the Civic Offices in Epping. 
 

54. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct, Councillor D Wixley 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the Corporate Plan Key Action Plan Year 4 
2021/22 quarter 2 corporate performance reporting in relation to Roding Valley 
Recreation Ground under the Green Infrastructure Strategy corporate project, as he 
was chairman of Loughton Town Council’s Recreation Committee.  
 

55. PUBLIC QUESTIONS & REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 
The Committee noted that no public questions or requests to address the meeting 
had been received. 
 

56. EXECUTIVE DECISIONS - CALL-IN  
 
The Chairman advised the Committee that a call-in of Housing Services Portfolio 
Holder Decision PFH-004-2021/22 by Councillor C C Pond and four other councillors 
had led to an informal meeting being held on 1 November 2021, which had been 
productive. A follow-up meeting on 6 December 2021 would be reporting back on 
alternative tree planting sites. 
 

57. CORPORATE PLAN KEY ACTION PLAN YEAR 4 2021/22 - QUARTER 2 
CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORTING  
 
C Graham, Project Manager (Performance), introduced quarter 2 and reported on 
projects at red or amber status (exceptions). The KPI data now showed comparisons 
to the previous quarter. Performance project officers were relooking at the KPI data 
in its entirety to understand the processes behind them and she would share any 
information on this at a future meeting.  
 
The Committee scrutinised the following areas. 
 
(1) Status and Progress Report: Key Corporate Projects 
 
(a) Community Health and Wellbeing service area 
 
Waltham Abbey Community and Cultural Hub 
Why was the project on hold? A Small, Strategic Director and 151 Officer, replied this 
was in relation to cost of project queries.  
 
(b) Planning Policy and Implementation service area 
 
Green Infrastructure Strategy 
On the draft paper that had been developed for the implementation of the Roding 
Valley Recreation Ground and Theydon Bois to Loughton/Debden Public Rights of 
Way Network, there was no reference to working with Loughton Town Council that 
held the land under a 125-year lease. C Graham noted the information. The project 
came under the Planning Services Director, N Richardson. N Dawe, Chief Operating 
Officer, replied that as a site visit was imminent with EFDC officers and other 
interested parties, he would ensure this information was passed on, so the Town 
Council could also be informed of the planned site visit.  
 

Page 6

mailto:climatechange@eppingforestdc.gov.uk


Overview & Scrutiny Committee  18 November 2021 

(2) Quarterly KPI Reporting 
 
(a) Community Health and Wellbeing service area 
 
Number of families in B&B accommodation for 6 weeks+ 
How difficult was it for the Council to meet this legal requirement? Councillor  
H Whitbread, Housing Services Portfolio Holder, replied that the people needing 
temporary accommodation were being housed in our housing stock and the good 
news was that Norway House was under occupied largely because of the work 
around homeless prevention.  
 
If the Council was meeting the requirement by housing the homeless from its own 
stock, had that increased waiting times for other people and was Norway House’s 
future under question? Councillor H Whitbread replied that there was a wait of up to 
two years for larger accommodation and we had to make sure the right stock was 
being provided; this was being looked at under the Council housebuilding 
programme. Regarding plans over Norway House’s future, there were no immediate 
plans to close it but it was being looked at as part of a wider project on temporary 
accommodation. Norway House was a good facility, well run and ingrained in the 
North Weald community, although it was not the most modern accommodation. She 
encouraged members to engage in the Housing public consultations, as member 
feedback was useful.  
 
(b) Stronger Place KPIs 
 
Contracts waste – recycling  
In the new waste collection leaflet, it stated that cardboard waste should be put into 
recycling bags to be collected or loose card taken to a recycling centre but 
information on where these centres were had not been provided. Did this mean that if 
residents put out cardboard on its own, it would no longer be collected? If this was 
the case, why had there been a policy change? N Dawe replied the volume of card 
had increased since the lockdowns and there was more pressure on the waste 
collection service, but further information would be provided after the meeting.  
 
(Post meeting update: J Warwick, Acting Service Director (Contracts), advised 
there had been no changes made to cardboard refuse collection, any proposed 
changes to policies and collections would need to be signed off by the Waste 
Management Partnership Board and/or Cabinet. Members might have misunderstood 
the comments of Councillor N Avey, Environmental and Technical Services Portfolio 
Holder, when he advised members that it was better if cardboard packaging was 
placed in recycling sacks if possible but did not say there was a prohibition on large 
cardboard packaging being collected. Cardboard placed loose outside of any waste 
containers was still being collected and there were no plans to stop this at present. 
 
Housing Management – rent arrears 
Should this KPI come under Stronger Communities rather than Stronger Place?  
C Graham noted this comment and would investigate it further.  
 
Electric vehicle charging points 
Following a presentation on EVC points at the recent Stronger Place Select 
Committee, a new trial was taking place in Oakwood Hill East car park in Loughton 
that would also assist air quality. Would there be a KPI for EVC points? N Dawe 
advised C Graham to contact S Lloyd-Jones who was in charge of this project, 
initially for commercial vehicles, and to contact N Liniham for broader issues on air 
quality.  
 

Page 7



Overview & Scrutiny Committee  18 November 2021 

(c) Stronger Council KPIs 
 
People – Diversity and Inclusion – % of workforce by ethnicity 
There was a high rate of ethnicity not being declared by staff and could this be 
investigated? C Graham replied that she had fed this back when it was raised at the 
Committee’s last meeting. The People Team was trying to improve the process to 
encourage more feedback, but this data was given voluntarily by staff. 
 
People – Sickness Absence – average number of days per employee 
It was noted that there had been an increase in mental health sickness that was 
being managed by team managers. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the committee reviewed quarter 2 Corporate Performance. 
 

58. ENDORSEMENT OF THE HARLOW AND GILSTON GARDEN TOWN 
TRANSPORT STRATEGY  
 
N Polaine (HGGT Director) and I Braddick (HGGT Lead) were in attendance.  
I Braddick introduced the report with a short presentation outlining the reasons and 
ambitions crucial to the endorsement of the HGGT Transport Strategy. It had been 
developed to meet the ambitions for sustainable movement set out within the HGGT 
vision, against the backdrop of the challenges of future travel demand linked to 
planned growth as set out in the Council’s emerging Local Plan. The Council had 
declared a climate emergency in 2019. With transport now the largest contributor to 
UK greenhouse gas emissions, the HGGT transport strategy supported the highest 
commitment across the Garden Town Authorities to become carbon-neutral by 2030. 
Key to this was making it easier to choose to travel sustainably, by providing reliable 
and high quality sustainable and active travel routes, and by creating connected 
communities and safe, enjoyable streets that offered local facilities and travel options 
for everyday activities. Members were also advised that the decision would now be 
taken by Cabinet on 25 January 2022.  
 
Questions raised by members during the meeting were summarised below. 
 
How would communities be constructed to reduce travelling and promote sustainable 
transport and growth? I Braddick replied it was fundamental that people’s needs had 
to be met locally and hub set-ups were one of the first things to look at in 
masterplanning. The transport strategy was built into reducing travel, so the ability to 
work, live, play and visit locally was key. N Polaine remarked a modal shift of 60% of 
all trips starting and/or ending in the new garden communities of the HGGT should 
be by active and sustainable travel modes.  
 
Not everyone was able to use bikes, buses or walk, some people might not work in 
the area and would the results from the 2021 Census in relation to zero emission 
vehicles be used to amend this data? I Braddick replied the transport strategy 
enabled a genuine alternative for short journeys but if people needed to use a car 
then it was not stopping these. Promoting a shift to public transport and 60% active 
travel was key, as sustainable modes must be in a transport strategy. The results 
from the Census were expected in 2023, but it was recognised that such vehicles 
played a large part in tackling zero emissions and the transport strategy would allow 
for updates to be done. M Polaine commented that 60% modal shift left 40% for other 
ways to travel, but this could include collective car ownership, car sharing etc. Zero 
emission cars could still cause congestion. The transport strategy would put in place 
sustainable travel for the next 20 to 30 years. 

Page 8



Overview & Scrutiny Committee  18 November 2021 

Regarding principle 1, which gave priority to reducing unnecessary travel, and action 
5, maximising opportunities which meant exploring and introducing new and 
innovative transport technologies as they developed, what was the vision on this? 
People would use buses providing they were cheap, reliable and frequent. M Polaine 
replied an example was trips to schools and could we influence this. Cheap and 
frequent public transport was challenging. Behavioural changes were needed to 
encourage children and adults, and for people to be open to new innovations, such 
as hydrogen vehicles, and attract private investment. As this was being endorsed by 
the two highway authorities, Essex and Hertfordshire county councils, it should shape 
their work, as well as the five partnerships. It was acknowledged that schools should 
be built close to houses.  
 
Hospitals also needed to be accessible and not out of the way? I Braddick advised 
there was much debate on hospitals being accessible by public transport and car. A 
large employment site was needed. The transport strategy tried to address this as 
trips must be safe, and to understand shift patterns when using demand responsive 
travel (DRT) to correlate with the working pattern. 
 
It was difficult to impose restrictions on car ownership per household and 
controversial to block off certain roads to traffic using non-local traffic schemes (NLT) 
to encourage walking and cycling. As Harlow had cycle and walk lanes, would there 
be a cycling infrastructure in Latton Priory? I Braddick commented that these aspects 
needed to be built in at the masterplanning stage, so properties were being sold as 
healthy places to live and limits on car ownership linked into parking amenities at 
developments. It was about encouraging a behavioural change within the community. 
It was important that cycle and walkways connected up, so they did not stop at the 
end of a development and were safe to use.  
 
Would there be the opportunity to scope the flow of traffic to stop the build-up of 
vehicle emissions through road infrastructure at junctions, 20 mph schemes and one-
way systems? I Braddick said that correct signalising at junctions was key in junction 
design and the transport strategy was a hierarchy to uphold design. M Polaine added 
that this detailed design was with the highway authorities.  
 
With the introduction of smaller shopping centres for local housing areas to reduce 
some of the travelling, it was noted that Harlow had been set-up like this already.  
 
As commuters travelled to Epping to use the Oyster card on London Underground, 
could the scheme be extended to Harlow with cheaper fares? I Braddick replied this 
was not being pursued but within the transport strategy there was an understanding 
of price points and fare difference. It was noted that Greater Anglia had been lobbied 
by the local MP, but it had not come to fruition yet. 
 
It seemed traffic was given priority and pedestrians low priority in Loughton regarding 
the hierarchy on the principles of use, in particular the Epping Forest Retail Park was 
difficult to walk to, so people had to drive.  
 
I Braddick advised members’ comments / feedback should be included, so the report 
would be rewritten for Cabinet’s meeting in January 2022.  
 

RESOLVED:  
 

That the Committee reviewed the report on the endorsement of the HGGT 
Transport Strategy. 

 
 

Page 9



Overview & Scrutiny Committee  18 November 2021 

59. CABINET BUSINESS  
 
Councillor S Murray was concerned by the small number of Cabinet attending the 
meeting as in his opinion they should attend. Councillor M Sartin replied that hybrid 
meetings allowed other members to come in via Zoom. It was noted that Councillors 
C Whitbread, N Bedford and J Philips had given their apologies.  
 
Councillor S Murray said that he had emailed a portfolio holder three months ago and 
had only received a holding reply, so what was the expectation of a reply? Councillor 
M Sartin commented that there was an expectation of a reply within a reasonable 
amount of time and if a Cabinet member did not have an immediate reply, to 
acknowledge the email. Councillor H Whitbread said that she did try to reply as soon 
as possible. Councillor S Kane was usually quick to respond.  
 
Cabinet’s Key Decision List (KDL) updated to the 1 November 2021 was scrutinised 
by the Committee and the following points were raised. 
 
(a) Planning and Sustainability Portfolio 
 
It was noted that under Implementation of the Local Plan, the Council had not 
received a reply from the Inspector yet. 
 
(b) Finance, Qualis Client and Economic Development Portfolio 
 
Under the description of the wording for the sale of the Pyrles Lane site item, it read, 
“to agree”, but why not “to consider”? This was noted and the wording would be 
amended in next month’s KDL. 
 
(c)  Housing Services Portfolio 
 
A draft of the new trees policy had been scrutinised by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on 3 June 2021, but it had not been to Cabinet yet even though the KDL 
was showing a decision date of 21 June 2021 and would a final draft come before 
this Committee? Councillor H Whitbread replied that she would check on the timings 
so the KDL could be updated. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

(1) That the Committee reviewed the Executive’s current programme of 
Key Decisions of 1 November 2021; 
 

(2) That the description of the wording for the sale of Pyrles Lane site be 
amended to, “To consider the sale of the site to Qualis for 
development” in the next KDL; and 
 

(3) That the Cabinet decision date for the new policy (trees) item be 
updated on the next KDL. 

 

60. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - WORK PROGRAMME  
 
(a) Current work programme 
 
G Woodhall, Democratic and Electoral Services Team Manager advised that two 
representatives, M Meredith and J Hogan, from the Princess Alexandra Hospital 
Trust had accepted the invite to attend the Committee’s next meeting on 7 December 
2021. Members were asked to forward their questions to G Woodhall so he could 

Page 10



Overview & Scrutiny Committee  18 November 2021 

brief them ahead of the meeting. The only other item going to this extra meeting 
would be a review of the Council’s Epping Forest District Markets Policy. 
 
Councillor S Murray remarked that the Care Quality Commission (CQC) had visited 
the hospital in the summer and that members should read the report that had been 
published on the CQC website.  
 
Councillor D Wixley said the Conservators of Epping Forest had published a 
Management and Strategy Business Plan for 2020 to 2030 at the beginning of the 
year and it might be worth inviting the Superintendent to a future meeting, which 
members agreed to pursue in the new year. 
 
(b) Reserve work programme 
 
The Committee noted this. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

(1) That the Committee reviewed its current work programme and reserve 
programme;  
 

(2) That G Woodhall would collate members questions for the PAH 
external scrutiny item and apprise their representatives before the 
meeting on 7 December 2021;  
 

(3) That the Committee would review the Council’s Epping Forest District 
Markets Policy at this December meeting; and 
 

(4) That the Conservators of Epping Forest would be invited to attend a 
future meeting in relation to its Management and Strategy Business 
Plan 2020 to 2030. 

 

61. SELECT COMMITTEES - WORK PROGRAMME  
 
(a) Stronger Communities Select Committee 
 
It was noted that the last meeting had been held on 21 September when progress 
had been reported to the Committee at the meeting on 12 October 2021. The next 
meeting was due to be held on 11 January 2022.  
 
Councillor J H Whitehouse queried if twice a year updates of the Customer Services 
Strategy would be more appropriate rather than quarterly. Councillor M Sartin 
advised that select committee members had the opportunity to discuss their work 
programme at each meeting. 
 
(b) Stronger Council Select Committee 
 
Councillor P Bolton, Select Committee Chairman, reported on the meeting of  
16 November 2021 when the select committee reviewed the quarter 2 corporate 
performance reporting, the updated Medium-Term Financial Plan 2022/23 to 
2026/27, Capital Programme Update 2022/23 to 2026/27 and quarter 2 Budget 
Monitoring Report. There would be cost pressures next year, but the Council had no 
plans for specific cuts. Members also discussed the closure report for the 
Accommodation Project, but what happened when projects were completed and 
there would be no further feedback? It had been agreed that if members wished to 
pursue an outcome there could be a further update. 

Page 11



Overview & Scrutiny Committee  18 November 2021 

On the Cabinet’s KDL, customer satisfaction was a corporate aim aligned to Stronger 
Council, so it was requested that this be discussed at the next joint meeting in 
January 2022 as to where this sat, as it was related to how the Council worked. The 
Committee noted this action for the next joint meeting.  
 
Councillor S Murray asked about item 11, report on new election legislation on Voter 
ID and any financial implications for the Council, was that waiting to be confirmed 
because it was dependent on national legislation? G Woodhall agreed this was the 
case. 
 
(c) Stronger Place Select Committee 
 
Councillor A Lion, Select Committee Chairman, reported on the extra meeting held 
on 4 November 2021. He noticed that Princess Alexandra Hospital Trust 
representatives would now be attending Overview and Scrutiny Committee on  
7 December. Members had received an Essex Highways update from County 
Councillor L Scott mainly on its generic policy, for instance, looking at potholes. The 
select committee reviewed the off street parking tariffs and electric vehicle charging 
points at the Oakwood Hill East car park. It also considered a report on improving 
payment options for leaseholders. The Council had gone some way to help mitigate 
this for leaseholders and come up with a payment plan. Scrutiny training, which was 
outstanding for this year, would be welcomed especially by new members. The select 
committee also reviewed the waste and recycling collection / street cleansing 
contract, which although a confidential item, was an indication of where the waste 
management contract would be going, so more was to be discussed on this. The 
work programme was considerably enhanced, so some items would be carried 
forward to the next municipal year. 
 
Councillor M Sartin advised that G Woodham had sourced two trainers for scrutiny 
member training, but the dates were yet to be confirmed. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

(1) That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee noted the progress of the 
three select committees against their work programmes; and 
 

(2) That the next joint meeting consider alignment of the select 
committees’ Terms of Reference with the Council’s corporate aims as 
detailed in the Cabinet’s forward plan. 

 

62. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS  
 
The Committee noted that there was no business which necessitated the exclusion of 
the public and press from the meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 12



 
 

Report to the Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
Date of meeting: 7 December 2021 
  
 
 
 
 
Subject:  Princess Alexandra Hospital Trust - Scrutiny of External Organisation 
 
Responsible Officer:  Gary Woodhall   (01992) 564470 
 
Democratic Services:  Vivienne Messenger  (01992) 564243 
 
 

Recommendations/Decisions Required: 
 
(1) That the Committee undertake appropriate external scrutiny of the 
development of a new hospital in Sheering by the Princess Alexandra Hospital 
Trust and the recent CQC report. 

 
1.  The Committee has previously requested an opportunity to undertake appropriate 
external scrutiny of the work being undertaken by the Princess Alexandra Hospital Trust to 
develop a new hospital in Sheering. This hospital would serve the residents in the west of the 
district and consequently there would be benefits for the Epping Forest District. This issue is 
included in the current work programme for the Committee and a special meeting was 
scheduled to consider this item. 
 
2.  Questions concerning the recent report from the Care Quality Commission (CQC) on 
the care provision being provided at the current Princess Alexandra hospital have been 
raised for consideration at the meeting as well. Further lines of questioning to be raised have 
been sought, and Members will have the opportunity to question the representatives from the 
Princess Alexandra Hospital Trust at the meeting.  
 
3.  Invitations have been extended to the Trust and Lance McCarthy, Chief Executive, 
and Stephanie Lawton, Chief Operating Officer, will be attending the Committee meeting 
virtually. 
 
Resource Implications: 
 
The recommendations of this report seek to enable scrutiny activity to more effectively meet 
work programme requirements.  
 
Legal and Governance Implications: 
 
The Council’s Constitution sets out rules for the management of its Overview and Scrutiny 
responsibilities. Although external organisations are not generally required by legislation to 
attend a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, it is hoped that most would be 
willing to engage constructively with the Council’s scrutiny activity when invited to do so. 
 
Safer, Cleaner, Greener Implications: 
 
There are no implications arising from the recommendations of this report in respect of the 
Council’s commitment to the Climate Local Agreement, the corporate Safer, Cleaner, 
Greener initiative, or any crime and disorder issues within the District.  
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



 
 

Consultation Undertaken: 
 
The proposed external scrutiny exercise is included in the current work programme for the 
Committee. 
 
Background Papers:  
 
None. 
 
Impact Assessments: 
 
Risk Management 
 
The Council’s Constitution sets out rules for the management of its Overview and Scrutiny 
responsibilities. 
 
Equality: 
 
There are no equality implications arising from the recommendations of this report. 

Page 14



MC 16/02/17 v2 

Report to Overview and Scrutiny  
Committee 
 
Date of meeting: 7 December 2021 
 
 
Portfolio: Community and Regulatory Services (Councillor A. Patel)  
 
Subject:  Proposed Epping Forest District Market Policy 
 
Officer contact for further information:  Sally Devine (01992 564149) 
 
Democratic Services Officer: V Messenger (01992 564243) 
 
 
Recommendations/Decisions Required: 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee are asked to comment and make recommendations on the 
adoption of an Epping Forest District Market Policy and associated Fees Policy, for consideration 
by Cabinet at its meeting on 25 January 2022.  
 
 
Report: 
 
1.  The Council recognises the important contribution that markets can make to the local economy and 
the character of an area. Markets can deliver economic growth and regeneration; they offer an 
opportunity for small businesses to get started for a relatively modest financial outlay, help increase town 
centre vitality and contribute in a number of ways to the local communities they serve. 
 
2.  The promotion of markets is an important inclusion in the town centre regeneration projects for 
Epping, Loughton, Ongar, Waltham Abbey and Buckhurst Hill, and for the district as a whole. It is also 
particularly relevant, following the coronavirus pandemic which has redirected community focus towards 
the outside shopping and hospitality experience.  
 
3.  The Council currently controls street trading in the district through Street Trading Consents, by 
powers vested in it, under Schedule 4 of Part 3 of The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1982. However, these Consents are most appropriately applied to a single trader operating from one 
stall or vehicle and not to market events which consist of multiple stalls each selling different products by 
different individual traders. In order to support the vison of the Council to encourage markets as part of 
the district’s economic diversification, it is necessary to look to alternative legislation. 
 
4. The Council has powers under Part 3 of the Food Act 1984, to hold markets within its area and has 
the right to licence and control the frequency of such markets. It is good practice for Councils to publish 
a Market Policy and have a licensing regime that allows it to influence the nature and type of market for 
the benefit of the community; to distinguish between commercial and community-based markets or those 
with a strong charitable element; to ensure conditions are in place to meet legislative controls including 
to protect public safety; and that these can be consistently and fairly applied to all traders wishing to 
operate in the district.   
 
5. The Market Policy will include commercial and community-based markets or those with a strong 
charitable status. However, Council run markets fall outside the scope of the Market Policy. This includes 
North Weald Market operating under a lease agreement with the Council, and any other Council 
operated occasional market events, such as plant and craft fairs, Christmas and summer markets, 
festivals and other themed markets across the district. Markets that operate by virtue of an historic Royal 
Charter are also out of scope, these being the weekly markets run by the Town Councils at Epping, 
Ongar and Waltham Abbey. Such markets are also entitled to the right of protection within a common 
law distance of six and two third miles - measured ‘as the crow flies’. This common law entitlement is 
part of a local authority’s market rights and has been upheld by a Court of Appeal. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



MC 16/02/17 v2 

6. The draft Market Policy, has been subject to a full public consultation including relevant partners, 
authorities, trading bodies, local businesses, Town and Parish Councils. The consultation was published 
on the website for the full consultation period. A number of comments have been received and several 
amendments have been made to the original draft. The new amended draft Policy is at Appendix 1 of 
this report. A summary of the consultation comments is documented at Appendix 2, together with any 
proposed amendments or officer comments and these are explained in more detail in the section 
‘Consultation undertaken’ below. 
 
7. The Policy includes a licensing process that requires certain insurances and documentation to be 
presented at application stage, with an appropriate fee and, on approval, the market licence will be 
subject to licence conditions to protect public safety, nuisance, highways issues and other regulatory 
concerns. It is proposed that all commercial markets will be subjected to the licensing regime, however, 
only large-scale community-based or charitable markets, will require a licence. This rationale is to ensure 
that the small, ad hoc markets, many of which have operated for many years across the district without 
any adverse issues or complaints arising, are not burdened with unnecessary bureaucracy. It is 
considered however, that a community/charitable market operating 25 or more stalls should be included 
in the licensing regime as the risks to public safety and other environmental health, health and safety etc 
are likely to be relevant and justify scrutiny. 
 
8.  A charging process will be included within the licensing regime. A Fees Policy and schedule is 
proposed at Appendix 3 of this report. The fees for commercial markets vary depending on the size and 
frequency of the market event over the year and have been calculated based on reasonable and 
proportionate estimate of the time required to process applications, initial site visits, draft licence 
agreement and ongoing costs associated with compliance visits, responding to enquiries, complaints 
and associated administration. It is proposed that community-based or charitable markets providing 25 
or more stalls are charged a flat fee of £100 to cover administrative costs. An additional cost per market 
may apply where such a market is held more than once in any calendar year and will be based on the 
market formula set for commercial markets. These fees, if approved will be included in the Council’s 
current Fees and Charges Schedule and will be subject to the Council’s annual fee review. 
  
9. Finally, Cabinet will be asked to ratify a piece of legislation relevant to this Market Policy, that is 
known to have been adopted by Members historically but does not appear in any current records. The 
Council has adopted Section 37 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, that 
requires any person intending to hold a temporary market to notify the Council in advance, so that if 
appropriate the Council can take steps to remove the permitted development rights to hold such a 
market and require the operator to apply for planning permission to do so. However, whilst the Council’s 
Constitution references the said legislation in its delegations, no minuted records exist to evidence the 
adoption of the legislation in the first instance. Our Legal Services recommend that for completeness 
and to protect against any potential challenge in the courts, that this legislation be ratified and minuted 
again by the current Cabinet.  
 
10. Overview and Scrutiny Committee are asked to comment on the proposed Epping Forest District 
Market Policy and the Market Fees Policy, before its consideration at Cabinet on 25 January 2022. 
 
 
Reason for decision: 
 
The Council wants to encourage a market trading environment that compliments the surrounding area 
and retail offer, that is sensitive to the needs of all users of our town centres and provides a diversity of 
choice for consumers. 
 
A Market Policy is proposed that will allow the Council to influence the nature and type of markets in a 
particular locality for the benefit of the community. It will also include an appropriate regulatory 
framework, through a licensing regime that will set licence fee conditions to protect public safety, 
nuisance, highways issues and other regulatory concerns 
 
Applications for a Market Licence administered and enforced by the Licensing Team within the 
Regulatory Service will be subject to a fees schedule that will be reviewed annually.  
 
 

Page 16



MC 16/02/17 v2 

Options considered and rejected: 
 
The Council has a policy for controlling street trading of single market operators in the district by virtue of 
street trading consents. However, it is not appropriate to apply this mechanism to market events which 
consist of multiple stalls each selling different products by different individual traders.  
 
Powers vested in the Council under Part 3 of the Food Act 1984, allows it to hold markets within its area 
and affords the right to licence and control the frequency of such markets. It is also good practice for 
councils to publish a Market Policy and have a licensing regime that allows it to influence the nature and 
type of market for the benefit of the community.  
 
To not adopt a new policy to address market trading events prevents the Council from having the 
necessary framework to influence and control the market offer to local communities and fails to provide a 
robust and fair regulatory regime. 
 
 
Consultation undertaken: 
 
There is no statutory requirement to consult before determining this licensing policy however the Council 

has chosen to consult with the following: 

 The National Association of British Market Authorities (NABMA) 

 The National Market Traders Federation (NMTF) 

 Members of the Council, including Town and Parish Councils 

 Local businesses 

 Existing operators 

 Essex Police 

 Essex Fire and Rescue 

 Essex Highways 

 Essex Trading Standards 

 Epping Forest Planning Authority 

 Environmental Health 

 Relevant Council services responsible for planning, environmental health, licensing, 

economic regeneration, legal services and town centre operations 

 A copy of the policy was also placed on the Council’s website inviting comments. 

The consultation ended on 6 December 2021. A table of consultation responses received is attached at 

Appendix 2, which includes confirmation of any amendments made to the Policy as a result of such 

responses, and any other associated officer comments.  

Any additional consultation responses received after the submission of this report to Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee will be reflected in the report to Cabinet on 25 January 2022. 

The Committee may want to note particularly, the following substantive changes to the first draft 
submission of the Market Policy as a result of consultation responses and further officer considerations: 
 

 A new paragraph is inserted at 8.4 that states that ‘community-based markets with up to 24 stalls will 
not require a market licence however, the Council’s expectation is that they shall comply with the 
market rules and conditions detailed in this policy as a matter of good practice. Those with 25 or more 
stalls will require a market licence to which a fee will apply’. This has been included, to ensure that 
the small, ad hoc markets, many of which have operated for many years across the district without 
any adverse issues or complaints arising, are not required to apply for a market licence which is 
considered an unnecessary burden.  

 A new paragraph inserted at 11.4 under ‘Market Fees’ reinforces that a market event with less than 
25 stalls does not need a licence and therefore no fee is payable. Any community market that falls 
under the licensing regime by virtue of having 25 plus stalls will only have to pay a one-off 
administrative fee. An additional cost per market may apply where a community-based or charitable 
market with 25 stalls or above is held more than once in any calendar year; any additional cost will be 
calculated using the market formula contained within the general market licence fee structure. 

Page 17



MC 16/02/17 v2 

Resource implications: 
 
There will be no additional staff resource. 
A market licence, as required under the Policy, will be subject to an annual fee payable by the market 
operator. The fees will be reviewed annually and included in the Councils fees and charges schedule 
 
Legal and Governance Implications: 
 
The Council has powers under Part 3 of the Food Act 1984, to hold markets within its area and the right 
to licence and control the frequency of markets within its district.  
 
Section 37 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, is also relevant to the Market 
Policy. Whilst the Council’s constitution references the said legislation in its delegations, no minuted 
records exist to evidence the adoption of the legislation in the first instance. Cabinet is therefore being 
asked to ratify and minute the adoption of the legislation again for completeness. 
 
Safer, Cleaner, Greener Implications: 
 
The Market Policy and licence conditions are designed to protect public safety also ensure a suitable 
waste management plan and that an adequate Event Management Plan and relevant risk assessments 
are in place.  
The provision of outdoor markets may also provide residents and visitors additional confidence on the 
high street following the covid pandemic experience. 
 
Background Papers:  
 
Epping Forest Council Economic Policy: Nurturing Growth 2020-2025 
 
Buckhurst Hill Regeneration Study 2021 
Epping Regeneration Study 2021 
Loughton High Road Regeneration Study 2021 
Loughton Debden Regeneration Study 2021 
Waltham Abbey Regeneration Study 2021 
 
Impact Assessments: 
 
Risk Management 
 
Risk management will be considered with every licence application. Depending on the size and nature of 
the market event this may include submission of an Event Management Plan and relevant Risk 
Assessments. Other considerations will include: any previous applications being refused, or consent 
being revoked; potential risk to the public in terms of highway safety and obstruction such as 
interference with sight lines, junctions, accesses, pathways and crossings; free flow of pedestrians or 
vehicles in the street, with particular regard for the visually impaired or those with other physical 
disability; the nature of goods to be traded, including those deemed inappropriate or to have an adverse 
health or environmental risk; the likelihood of activity to present crime and disorder or anti-social 
behaviour risk; potential for noise, odour and litter or encourage vermin; comments received from 
consultees; other required permissions or consent; and any conflict with any other Council policy.  
These will be considered by Licensing Officers prior to any market event and additional requirements or 
adjustments agreed with the market operator before start date. 
 
Equality: 
 
See EQIA at Appendix 4 
 

Page 18



MC 16/02/17 v2 

Appendix 1  
Epping Forest District Council Market Policy 

 
 
 

 

 

Market Policy 
 
 
 

This document provides policy and guidance for persons wishing to 
hold private, commercial and/or charity markets together with car 

boot sales or similar across the district of Epping Forest. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 19



MC 16/02/17 v2 

Epping Forest District Council 
Market Policy 

 

1. Introduction  

 

1.1 Epping Forest District Council (“the Council”) recognises the important contribution that 

markets can make to the local economy and the character of an area. Markets can deliver 

economic growth & regeneration; they offer an opportunity for small businesses to get 

started for a relatively modest financial outlay, help increase town centre vitality and 

contribute in a number of ways to the local communities they serve. 

 

1.2 The promotion of markets is an important inclusion in the town centre regeneration 

projects for Epping, Loughton, Ongar, Waltham Abbey, Buckhurst Hill and the district as a 

whole and is particularly relevant, following the coronavirus pandemic which has 

redirected community focus towards the outside shopping and hospitality experience.   

 
1.3 The purpose of this policy is to create a market trading environment that compliments the 

surrounding area and retail offer, is sensitive to the needs of all users of our town centres 

and provides a diversity of choice for consumers. It seeks to encourage and stimulate 

investment from local traders and to create a quality and sustainable offer to our residents 

and visitors. 

 

1.4 The Council recognises that there are many different types of market activities and 

accordingly, the Market Policy is intended to cater for each type. In particular, the Market 

Policy distinguishes between commercial markets and those that are largely community-

based with a strong charitable element. Sections 7 & 8 of the Market Policy deals with the 

different types of market activities and sets out the Council's approach when considering 

applications in respect of such markets.  

 

1.5 This policy has been written with a view to supporting the following objectives: 

 

 Recognise the importance and contribution of markets to the wellbeing of the local 

economy; 

 Enhance the economic diversity of the area; 

 Protect and, where possible, enhance the amenity and character of the District and 

local communities within it; 

 Offer opportunity for local traders and businesses; 

 Provide traders with guidance and clarity;  

 Encourage residents to spend locally on their High Streets and support their local 

business community; 

 Ensure coherence with Council policies and relevant legislation; and  

 Promote fairness, transparency and consistency. 

 

2. Consultation and Review of the Market Policy 

 

2.1 There is no statutory requirement to consult before determining this licensing policy 

however to ensure openness and transparency, prior to implementing this policy the 

Council has chosen to consult with the following: Page 20



MC 16/02/17 v2 

 The National Association of British Market Authorities (NABMA) 

 The National Market Traders Federation (NMTF) 

 Members of the Council, including Town and Parish Councils 

 Local businesses 

 Existing operators 

 Essex Police 

 Essex Fire and Rescue 

 Essex Highways 

 Essex Trading Standards 

 Epping Forest Planning Authority 

 Environmental Health 

 Relevant Council services responsible for licensing, economic regeneration, legal 

services and town centre operations 

 

2.2 A copy of the policy was also placed on the Councils website inviting comments. 

 

2.3 This policy may be reviewed from time to time by the portfolio lead for Regulatory 

Services. Any revisions made to the policy shall take effect on publication of the policy (as 

revised) on the Councils website. The policy will also be submitted to the Councils 

Licensing Committee for overview at 5-year intervals, or sooner if deemed appropriate. 

 

2.4 Anyone wishing to comment on this policy may do so in writing to the Licensing Team 

Manager, Epping Forest District Council, Civic Offices, 323 High Street Epping CM16 4BZ 

or via the Councils comments, compliments and complaints page on the Councils website 

at Comments, compliments and complaints – Epping Forest District Council 

(eppingforestdc.gov.uk) .     

 

3. Council and Charter Markets 

 

3.1 Epping Forest District Council licenses private operators to operate the following markets: 

 North Weald Market – every Saturday and Bank Holiday Monday between 8am & 3pm 

 

3.2 The Town Councils in the following areas either do or can operate a market by virtue of 

an historic Royal Charter: 

 Waltham Abbey Market – every Tuesday and Saturday 

 Epping Market – every Monday 

 Ongar Market – first Sunday of every month 

 

4. Epping Forest District Council’s Market Rights  

 

4.1 The towns of Epping, Waltham Abbey and Ongar are legally entitled, by virtue of historic 

Royal Charter to operate weekly markets. In more recent times, powers have been vested 

in local authorities under, what is now, Part III of the Food Act 1984, to hold markets and 

have the right to licence and control the frequency of markets within their district. 

 
Page 21

https://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/your-council/comments-compliments-and-complaints/
https://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/your-council/comments-compliments-and-complaints/


MC 16/02/17 v2 

4.2 In addition to the regular Council markets listed above, the Council may also operate 
occasional market events, such as plant and craft fairs, Christmas and summer markets, 
festivals and other themed markets across the district. Accordingly, the above list is 
subject to change and shall be updated as part of a periodic review of the Council’s 
Market Policy. 

 
 

4.3  Any market other than a market operated by Epping Forest District Council or a Charter 

market, will be subject to this policy. 

4.4 The Council has also adopted Section 37 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 

Provisions) Act 1982 that requires any person intending to hold a temporary market to 

notify the Council in advance, so that if appropriate, the Council can take steps to remove 

the permitted development rights to hold such a market and require the operator to apply 

for planning permission to do so.  

4.5 This right has been exercisable for many years and this policy takes into account the 

relevant legislation. 

 

5. What is a market event and who does the market policy apply to? 

 

5.1 The Councils Market Policy is intended to apply to all market events held in the district of 
Epping Forest that are not a Charter market or are not operated by Epping Forest District 
Council. 

 
 

5.2 The legal definition of a market is a ‘concourse of buyers and sellers’(this means that the 
public are entitled to attend market events to buy and sell).  It should be comprised of not 
less than five stalls, stands, vehicles (whether moveable or not) or pitches from which 
articles are sold by a range of different sellers. 

 

5.3 A market may be held either outdoors or indoors and on public or private land and 
includes car boot sales, antique and craft markets, general markets, food markets, 
farmers' markets and charitable markets but does not include jumble or table-top sales 
held for charitable or community purposes. However, this list is not exhaustive.  

 

5.4 There will be an operator of the market who will be responsible for the organisation and 
delivery of the market event. A Market Operator means the person, body or organisation 
to which a market licence is granted by the Council.  

 

5.5 A market may sometimes be held as part of a wider event. When this arises the market 
element (compromising of 5 or more stalls) of the event shall be subject to the Market 
Policy. Where a premises licence for a wider event (which includes a market element) has 
been issued by the Council then a separate licence may not be required. However, this 
requirement shall be determined on a case-by-case basis. 

5.6 This market policy does not apply to street trading activities. Street trading is controlled by 
a separate licensing process and relates to the granting of individual trader consents. 
Further information about street trading activities can be found on the Epping Forest 
District Council website:  
https://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/licensing/apply-for-a-licence/street-trading/ 

 

6. Licensing of Markets under the Council’s Market Policy 

6.1 The Council’s consent to a market, by the grant of a market licence, must be given prior to 
the event taking place. Any market that takes place without such a licence shall be in 

Page 22

https://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/licensing/apply-for-a-licence/street-trading/


MC 16/02/17 v2 

breach of the Market Policy and may be subject to the enforcement action described in 
Section 14 below.  

6.2 Market licenses are issued to the Market Operator identified in the application (“the 
Market Operator”) and are not transferrable. 

6.3 The Council shall consider applications in respect of the following categories of market 
events: 

a) Commercial markets; and 

b) Community-based markets (operated for a good cause or special event, with a strong 

charitable element).  

The criteria set out in Section 5 above will be relevant in respect of both Commercial and 
Community-based markets.  

7. Commercial Markets 

7.1 A commercial market is one which is operated for profit and where the traders are 
engaged in a business activity of selling goods for their own purposes. The Council shall 
consider applications in respect of commercial markets whilst also having regard to the 
following matters: 

 No market shall be authorised unless it can be demonstrated that the proposed 

market complements existing retail activity in the local area and supports the Council’s 

objective of helping to create a thriving local economy that is attractive and welcoming 

and does not prejudice the overall market offer. Please note: A lawful Council 

operated market, Charter market or other market which the Council has issued a 

licence, is entitled to the right of protection within a common law distance of six and 

two third miles - measured ‘as the crow flies. This common law entitlement is part of a 

local authority’s market rights and has been upheld by a Court of Appeal. 

 The applicant is required to provide a site plan showing the extent of the proposed 

market area and proposed layout of stalls. 

 Design of stalls must enhance the visual appearance of the area and be constructed 

in a suitable style and of appropriate materials i.e. simple, functional stalls with 

canopies or awnings of traditional or modern design.         

 The applicant is required to undertake a risk assessment in relation to the proposed 

operation of the market and make this available for inspection by the Council upon 

request.   

 The applicant must ensure that all other necessary consents and licences have been 

obtained prior to the market taking place. All traders must comply with any relevant 

statutory requirements, bylaws and other legislation. 

 Where necessary consultation with police, fire, health & safety and highways should 

be carried out together with any other relevant body. 

 The relevant application fee must accompany the application. The licence fees for any 

markets licence consist of a non-refundable fixed application fee and a sliding scale 

Page 23



MC 16/02/17 v2 

fee based on both the size of the market and the frequency with which the market is to 

be held.  

 All market traders must hold a current public liability insurance policy with cover of at 

least £5,000,000.00 (five million pounds) for any one claim. The policy must indemnify 

the Council and its employees against any claim, howsoever arising. Details including 

name and address of insurance company and policy number must be provided to the 

Council and upon each renewal date updated details produced and filed in the Council 

office prior to the market taking place. 

 All trading standards guidelines, health and safety requirements and any other 

relevant legislation must be adhered to. Food businesses with articles exposed or 

offered for sale for human consumption shall comply with current food & hygiene 

regulations and be able to demonstrate the required certification. 

 Food businesses trading should have a minimum food hygiene rating of 3 (standards 

are generally satisfactory) or above. 

 Type of goods to be sold. The goods must complement and not conflict with goods 

sold by other retailers in the immediate area. 

 Consideration being given to the adjacent retail offer to each individual pitch and 

limiting the number of those selling similar goods. This encourages diversity of offer 

and operators should seek to complement rather than compete. 

 Demonstrates a preference to the use of local traders and businesses.   

7.2 Following outline approval of an application a licensing agreement must be entered into 
between the Market Operator and the Council and such licensing agreement must be 
signed by both the Council and the Market Operator before the market takes place. The 
licence agreement will cover the issues set out in this section and all other matters the 
Council deems to be relevant including, but not limited to the following: 

 Waste disposal arrangements. Applicants have a legal responsibility under the 

Environmental Protection Act 1990 and other related legislation to safely contain and 

legally dispose of any waste produced.  

 Road closures and traffic management 

 Noise and nuisance 

 Health & Safety 

 Power usage 

 Market Operator agrees to allow access to appropriate Council Officers in the interest 

of public safety. 

Any other requirements the Council consider appropriate. Page 24



MC 16/02/17 v2 

8. Community – Based Markets 

8.1 Community-based markets are normally organised by local communities or groups with 
the intention of raising funds for a specific cause or celebrating a special event. 

8.2 The markets must be operated on a non-profit basis to assist a charity or community, and 
the operator shall supply relevant information to the Council if requested. Whilst it is 
acknowledged that some traders will be selling goods for their own purposes, the Council 
will look for the event to have a strong charitable element in the way the event is 
organised. 

8.3 Where a market is being operated on behalf of a registered charity, the operator must 
provide written permission from the charity organisation to raise funds on their behalf. 

8.4            Community-based markets with up to 24 stalls will not require a market licence however, 
the Councils expectation is that they shall comply with the market rules and conditions 
detailed in this policy as a matter of good practice. Those with 25 or more stalls will 
require a market licence to which a fee will apply.     

8.5 In respect of any licence the operator must have adequate insurances, comply with 
Trading Standards guidelines, health and safety requirements and any other legislative 
requirements or other statutory provisions laid down by the Council. 

8.6 Where applicable, a licensing agreement will be entered into between the operator and 
the Council and such licensing agreement must be concluded before the market takes 
place. This agreement will include and insist on such other requirements as are deemed 
appropriate to ensure consumer and public safety standards.  

9. Process for Determining Market Applications  

9.1 An electronic version of the Council’s Market Policy, together with the relevant market 
licence application form, can be viewed and downloaded from 
https://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/xxxxxxxx. 

9.2 The application accompanied by the relevant fee should be completed and submitted to 
licensing@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  

9.3  The application process will consider such matters as (but not limited to): 

 

 Has an adequate Event Management Plan been completed with the inclusion of any 

relevant Risk Assessments? The purpose of the risk assessment is to: 

a) Identify elements of the event or infrastructure that could cause injury or illness 

b) The likelihood that someone could be harmed and how seriously (the risk) 

c) What action will be taken to eliminate the hazard, or if this is not possible, 

control the risk   

The risk assessment will form an important part of the overall event management 

plan however, the event management plan should consider wider issues including; 

noise levels and the likelihood of noise disturbance to local residents, crime and 

disorder, evacuation, parking, stewarding and marshals, staff training, ingress and 

egress of attendees etc.  

Further details on event planning can be found on the Health and Safety Executive 
website here Event safety - Running an event safely (hse.gov.uk) Has the operator held 
other events within the district, if so, how many and at what frequency? 

 Previous applications being refused, or licence being revoked. Page 25

https://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/xxxxxxxx
mailto:licensing@eppingforestdc.gov.uk
https://www.hse.gov.uk/event-safety/running.htm


MC 16/02/17 v2 

 Has permission been granted by the venue/landowner? 

 Potential risk to the public in terms of highway safety and obstruction such as 

interference with sight lines, junctions, accesses, pathways and crossings. 

 Free flow of pedestrians or vehicles in the street, with particular regard for the visually 

impaired or those with other physical disability. 

 Road safety, including existing traffic orders and waiting restrictions. 

 The nature of goods to be traded. Including those deemed inappropriate or to have an 

adverse health or environmental risk.  

 Likelihood of activity to present crime and disorder or anti-social behaviour risk.    

 Whether the grant would create conflict with the trade of existing businesses. 

 Likelihood of noise, odour and litter or encourage vermin. 

 Comments received from consultees. 

 Obtaining of any other required permission or consent.  

 Conflict with any other Council policy.    

9.4 The Council will aim to deal with applications within a period of 28 days of receipt. 
Applicants are urged to apply as early as possible to ensure that the Council has 
adequate time to consider the relevant matters in an appropriate way. In considering the 
application the Council will require sufficient information to deal with all the issues set out 
in the criteria listed above and also covered on the application form. Failure to provide full 
information as highlighted above may lead to a delay in the Council reaching its decision 
or the application being refused.  

9.5 The Council will consult on applications and in doing so it will share information with other 
agencies as appropriate including Police, Essex County Council Highways, Planning and 
Environmental Health etc. 

9.6 The guidelines detailed in sections 7 & 8 of this policy will be applied when an application 
is made and received by the Council.  

9.7 Where an application is refused, the Council will set out the reasons for its decision in 
writing. If the applicant wishes to appeal the decision it should do so, in writing, within 
fourteen days of the Councils written decision. Please see section 10 in respect of the 
appeals procedure below.  

9.8 All decisions to grant a market licence are made at the discretion of Epping Forest District 
Council. The Council may issue a licence for up to one year or a lesser period where 
appropriate if the trading activity is seasonal or of a temporary nature.  

 

 
Page 26



MC 16/02/17 v2 

10. Appeals Process 

10.1 If the Council determines to refuse an application for a market licence, it will contact 
the applicant and set out the reasons for its decision in writing. 

10.2 There is no statutory right of appeal against the refusal to issue a market licence. 
However, the applicant may appeal against the decision through the Epping Forest 
District Council complaints procedure. 

10.3 If the applicant wishes to appeal the decision it should do so, in writing, within fourteen 
days of the Councils written decision, setting out the reasons why the applicant believes 
the decision is unwarranted.  

10.4 On receipt of an appeal request the decision will be reviewed by the Service Manager for 
Regulatory Services and the applicant informed of the outcome in writing.   

11. Market Fees 

11.1 A reasonable administrative fee will be charged for applications. The fees are set on a 
cost recovery basis, taking into consideration the time and cost to the Council in 
determining the application. If the application is successful, there will be an additional fee 
to cover the cost of ongoing compliance visits. 

11.2 The additional fee is payable once the application has been granted by the Council. An 
agreement between the applicant and the Council will be drawn up by the Council and 
this will require the appropriate fee to be paid at least 7 days prior to the event taking 
place. 

11.3 The fees are payable annually and are determined on the type, size and frequency of the 
market using the following categories: 

 Up to 14 stalls 

 15 – 24 stalls  

 25 - 34 stalls 

 35 – 44 stalls 

 45 – 54 stalls 

 55 – 100 stalls 

11.4 In respect of community-based or charitable markets, markets with up to 24 stalls will not 
require a markets licence and accordingly no fee will apply. For those with 25 stalls or 
above a flat fee is charged to cover administrative costs. An additional cost per market 
may apply where a community-based or charitable market with 25 stalls or above is held 
more than once in any calendar year and any additional cost will be calculated using the 
market formula contained within the fee structure shown above.    

11.5 Fees do not include any other fees that may be charged for the operator to comply with 
other relevant legislation, for example, a Game Licence, Alcohol Licence, Planning or 
Highways permission. 

11.6  Fees are reviewed annually and are available on the Councils website.  Page 27



MC 16/02/17 v2 

12. Other Approvals  

12.1 It is important to emphasise that any approval given by the Council in accordance with 
this Market Policy shall not remove the requirement for any other relevant approvals, 
consents or licences to be obtained by the Market Operator. 

12.2 Where the market is being held on private land, the Market Operator must ensure that 
approval from the relevant landowner is obtained prior to submitting the market 
application. 

12.3 The Market Operator should also consult with the Councils Planning Department to 
ascertain whether planning consent is required for the market to operate. Any market held 
in the same location for 14 or more days in a calendar year will require planning consent. 
Contact: Planning.Admin@eppingforestdc.gov.uk / 01992 564000. 

12.4 The Market Operator shall be responsible for any temporary road closures and associated 
traffic management arrangements that may be required in order to facilitate the operation 
of the market. Essex County Council has legal powers to temporarily close roads and 
divert traffic in order to facilitate various types of event. Applications for temporary road 
closures in relation to markets should, in the first instance, be addressed to Essex County 
Council (see www.essex.gov.uk for more information). 

 
12.5 Attention is also drawn to the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of any 

entertainment provided at the market or where a Temporary Events Notice might be 
required in respect of the sale of hot food or alcohol. Contact: 
licensing@eppingforestdc.gov.uk / 01992 564000. 

 
12.6 The Council has approved the adoption of Section 37 of the Local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982. This Section deals with temporary markets and any 
operator of a temporary market, together with the occupier of land on which the market is 
to be held, are required to give to the Council not less than one month's notice of the 
holding of the market. 

 
12.7 Any notice given by the operator and the occupier of the land shall state: 

 

 The full name and address of the person intending to hold the market 

 The day or days on which it is proposed that the market will be held and its proposed 

opening and closing times 

 The site on which it is proposed that the market will be held; and 

 The full name and address of the occupier of the land if he is not the person intending 

to hold the market. 

 
12.8 It is important to emphasise that the requirements of Section 37 are quite separate to the 

licensing of events under the Council's Market Policy set out in Section 9. The operator 
and the occupier of the land should ensure that a notice is given to the Council under the 
requirements of Section 37 as soon as proposals for a temporary market are under 
consideration. This will enable the Council to give preliminary consideration to a proposal 
and indicate its likely view on a subsequent application for a markets licence. 

 
 13. Renewing or Termination of the Market Licence   

13.1 Market licences will be granted for a maximum 12-month period. Operators should re-
submit their application if they wish to continue to operate a regular market. This must be 
done at least one month before their current market licence expires. No reminders will be 
sent 

Page 28



MC 16/02/17 v2 

13.2 The market licence may be terminated by either party by giving twenty-eight days’ notice 
in writing. 

14. Enforcement  

14.1 The Council will monitor the application of its Market Policy and any market event which is 
operated after the date of the adoption of this Market Policy.   

14.2 Any market which is not approved by the Council under its Market Policy will be subject to 
legal action and the Council may seek an appropriate remedy in the courts to prevent the 
market being held and/or damages as appropriate. 

14.3 Any Market Operator acting in contravention of any market licence granted by the Council 
will run the risk of the licence being terminated by the Council with immediate effect on 
such terms as the Council determines and, in such circumstances, the Council reserves 
the right to refuse any future applications for market licences submitted by the Market 
Operator concerned or any person or organisation associated with the Market Operator. 

14.4 Any costs associated with enforcement action deemed necessary as a result of the 
Market Operator’s failure to comply with the Market Policy will be recovered from the 
Market Operator. 

14.5 It is the responsibility of the Market Operator to ensure compliance with the conditions of 
the market licence. This includes ensuring that all traders are aware and comply with 
relevant conditions.  

14.6 The Council will deal with complaints about markets using its existing policies depending 
upon the complaint. 

15. Market Rules and Conditions   

 
15.1 The Market Operator shall not permit the sale, exchange or giving away of live animals, 

birds, fish, reptile or other livestock on the market place. 
 

15.2 No firearms (real or imitation), air weapons, sheath knives, cut-throat razors, 
hunting/fighting knives, bows or crossbows may be available for sale (domestic cutlery is 
permitted). The sale of any item that may be deemed to be of a harmful, objectionable or 
offensive nature, or that is prohibited by current Acts of Parliament, is not permitted. 

 
15.3 Loudspeakers, instruments or other noise generating appliances are not to be used or 

shall be so moderated as not to cause any nuisance, annoyance or disturbance.  
 

15.4 Where the market is held on the public highway, there must be an absolute minimum of 
0.450 metres from the kerb edge to a market stall/person serving at the market stall. 

 
15.5 Vehicles to unload and load the market are not exempt from existing parking 

restrictions/taxi bays/disabled parking bays, therefore it is important to consider where 
they can park safely without having an impact on any other highway user. 

 
15.6 Where the market is held on the public highway, market vehicle parking should be 

considered as most locations cannot accommodate all day parking.  
 

15.7 Where the market is held on private land, the Market Operator must ensure that there is 
adequate parking on the market site for both sellers and buyers. 

 
15.8 Where applicable, the Market Operator must ensure that there are sufficient stewards on 

duty to control traffic entering and leaving the market site and to control parking on the 
site in a safe manner. 

 
15.9 Market loading and unloading must not cause any trip hazards. 

Page 29



MC 16/02/17 v2 

 
15.10 Traders/the Market Operator must supply their own stalls, including any tables and 

awnings. 
 

15.11 Awning and stalls used must be stable in all weather conditions and not present a danger 
to other market/highway users. 

 
15.12 Awnings for stalls must not present trip hazards.  

 
15.13 Market stalls and stock should not block any highway crossing facilities and/or any access 

to highway crossing facilities. 
 

15.14 Market stalls should not be placed in any particularly narrow sections of the footway.  
 

15.15 Market stalls should be allocated positions that ensure any queues do not block the 
footways.  

 
15.16 Clear routes of access along the highway must be maintained, taking into account the 

needs of disabled people, older people and those with mobility needs. A width of 2m 
should be maintained but where this is not possible, 1.5m will be the minimum width 
allowed. Market stalls must be located to ensure that queues do not impede access 
routes.  

 
15.17  Stalls should not have goods spread across the footway in front of them.  

 
15.18 The Market Operator must provide suitable receptacles for the deposal of litter and 

ensure that all rubbish is removed from the vicinity of the market at the end of the day’s 
trading. 

 
15.19 Traders shall not bring onto the market any inflammable liquids, gases, fireworks or 

similar articles which may cause fire or explosion. The exception being a gas supply for 

cooking food upon such conditions as the Council may direct.  

15.20 No goods may be displayed or sold which in the opinion of the Council are inappropriate, 

dangerous or likely to cause offence to other traders or members of the public. 

15.21 No goods may be displayed or sold that are counterfeit or in breach of         

copyright or patent. 

15.22 No mains-powered electrical goods may be sold except for new items still in their original 

packaging.  

  15.23 Second-hand or used electrical goods may not be sold, even if PAT-tested 

15.24 All traders must familiarise themselves with the conditions of the licence issued by the 

Council. 

15.25 All incidents, accidents and “near misses” involving Traders, their staff or members of the 

public must be recorded and reported as soon as possible to the Council.  

 
 

This list is not exhaustive, additional conditions may be added or removed to the licence 
dependant on the type and size of the event.  

  

 

 

 Page 30



MC 16/02/17 v2 

 
Appendix 2                Summary of Consultation Responses and Officer proposals 

 

Responder Comment  Proposed Action Taken 

Essex Police – 
received via email  

15.16 An acceptable width of 
footway should be left available 
at all times – What is 
“acceptable “ it maybe useful to 
stipulate a distance or for 
example “ Wheel chair , 
pushchair access “ 

Amend 15.16 to include; Clear routes of 
access along the highway must be 
maintained, taking into account the needs of 
disabled people, older people and those 
with mobility needs. A width of 2m should 
be maintained but where this is not 
possible, 1.5m will be the minimum width 
allowed. Market stalls must be located to 
ensure that queues do not impede access 
routes. This is consistent with pavement 
licensing policy. 
 
Outcome achieved; This is consistent with 
current pavement licensing policy and 
provides clear guidance to operators. 

Friends of Swaines 
Green -  
organisers of the 
annual May Fayre – 
received via email 

Point 1. 
 
5.4 There will be an operator of 
the market who will be 
responsible for the organisation 
and delivery of the market event. 
A Market Operator means the 
person, body or organisation to 
which a market licence is 
granted by the Council. 

5.5 A market may sometimes be 
held as part of a wider event. 
When this arises the market 
element (compromising of 5 or 
more stalls) of the event shall be 
subject to the Market Policy. 
Where a premises licence for a 
wider event (which includes a 
market element) has been 
issued by the Council then a 
separate licence may not be 
required. However, this 
requirement shall be determined 
on a case-by-case basis. 

Clearly we will need a market 
licence for the May Fayre, but 
this implies we would require a 
licence for a ‘wider event’ – is 
this correct and what further 
licence would we need? 

Point 2. 

We note that our May Fayre is a 
‘Community based market' 
according to your section 8, 
although the implications are not 
clear. 

8.4 In respect of any licence the 

Point 1. 

Amend draft policy to state; Community-
based markets with up to 24 stalls will not 
require a market licence however, the 
Councils expectation is that they shall 
comply with the market rules and conditions 
detailed in this policy. Those with 25 or 
more stalls will require a market licence to 
which a fee will apply. 

Advice given regarding other licensing 
requirements that may apply i.e. premises 
licence or Temporary Event Notice if 
Alcohol is to be sold.  

Outcome achieved; To remove the 
requirement for small to medium events to 
apply for a market licence but to encourage 
compliance with the market rules and 
conditions detailed in the policy as a matter 
of good practice.   

 

 

Point 2. 

No proposed action. The policy states that 
all market traders must hold a current public 
liability insurance policy with cover of at 
least £5,000,000.00 (five million pounds) for 
any one claim, but we do not specify an 
amount for the operator. The Councils view 
is that this is a matter for the operator to 
determine in discussion with their insurer as 
they will be best placed to advise on the 
appropriate level of insurance cover 
required. 

Should the Council determine to remove the 

Page 31



MC 16/02/17 v2 

operator must have adequate 
insurances, comply with Trading 
Standards guidelines, health 
and safety requirements and 
any other legislative 
requirements or other statutory 
provisions laid down by the 
Council. 

We have insurance for the May 
Fayre, but there is no indication 
of what level is ‘adequate’. How 
should we interpret that? 

 

 

 

Point 3. 

9.3 The application process will 
consider such matters as (but 
not limited to): 

• Has an adequate Event 
Management Plan been 
completed with the inclusion of 
any relevant Risk Assessments? 

No information is given on what 
you consider an Event 
Management Plan to comprise, 
nor of what Risk Assessments 
you would require. Please clarify 
to provide enough information 
so that this requirement can be 
complied with. Does the Council 
require a copy of these 
documents as part of the 
licensing process? 

 

 

 

 

Point 4. 

15. Market Rules and Conditions 

15.1 The Market Operator shall 
not permit the sale, 
exchange/giving away or display 
of live animals, birds, fish, reptile 
or other livestock on the market 
place. 

We need a lot more clarity on 
this point. We normally include 

requirement for community/ charity-based 
markets with less than 25 stalls to hold a 
market licence, then the Council will not be 
imposing any formal requirements on the 
event organisers. However, it is the 
Councils expectation that all operators 
comply with the market rules and conditions 
detailed in the policy as a matter of good 
practice. 

Outcome achieved; Clarification provided 

 

Point 3.  

Amend policy to include; Market operators, 
should have a risk assessment in place to 
protect themselves, volunteers, traders and 
those attending the event from potential 
harm. The purpose of the risk assessment 
is to; 

 Identify elements of the event or 
infrastructure that could cause injury 
or illness 

 The likelihood that someone could 
be harmed and how seriously (the 
risk) 

 What action will be taken to 
eliminate the hazard, or if this is not 
possible, control the risk   

The risk assessment will form an important 
part of the overall event management plan 
however, the event management plan 
should consider wider issues including; 
noise levels and the likelihood of noise 
disturbance to local residents, crime and 
disorder, evacuation, parking, stewarding 
and marshals, staff training,  ingress and 
egress of attendees etc.  

Further details on event planning can be 
found on the Health and Safety Executive 
website here Event safety - Running an 
event safely (hse.gov.uk)  

Outcome achieved; Clarification and 
guidance provided to applicants.    

  

Point 4.  

Amend 15.1 as follows; 

15.1 The Market Operator shall not permit 
the sale, exchange/giving away of live 
animals, birds, fish, reptile or other livestock 

Page 32

https://www.hse.gov.uk/event-safety/running.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/event-safety/running.htm


MC 16/02/17 v2 

stalls supporting charities for 
ferrets, owls, sometimes lizards 
etc., and these stalls have these 
animals on display for the public 
to see and sometimes handle. 
This is typical for a public event 
of this type anywhere in the 
country, and it would be very 
disappointing not to have these.  

In addition, we need to 
determine if this regulation 
prevents us from having a dog 
show, ferret races, or a bird of 
prey demonstration, for 
example. If it does not, then this 
regulation needs expressing 
more clearly. 

on the market - place. 

Outcome achieved; This will no longer 
prohibit the exhibition of animals etc.   

 

 

 

Epping Horticultural 
Society (EHS) – 
telephone enquiry 

Concerns raised that annual 
EHS flower show at St Johns 
Church Epping will under the 
proposed policy require a 
market licence due to the event 
having between 6 -12 stalls and 
this will not be financially viable.  

Amend 8.3 of draft policy as follows; 
Community-based markets with up to 24 
stalls will not require a market licence 
however, the Councils expectation is that 
they shall comply with the market rules and 
conditions detailed in this policy as a matter 
of good practice. Those with 25 or more 
stalls will require a market licence to which 
a fee will apply. 

Outcome achieved; To remove the 
requirement for small to medium events to 
apply for a market licence but to encourage 
compliance with the market rules and 
conditions detailed in the policy as a matter 
of good practice.  

Officer correction/ 
modification 

11.3 The fees payable is 
determined based on whether 
the application is for the grant or 
renewal of an existing licence 
and the type, size and frequency 
of the market using the following 
categories. 
• Up to 10 stalls 
• 11 – 30 stalls  
• 31 plus stalls 

This paragraph is corrected to reflect that 
we do not propose a renewal process; a 
licence will be for 12 months and renewable 
annually. Also the criteria of number of stalls 
per fee has been amended to reflect more 
realistic costs 

Officer correction/ 
modification 

13.2 The Council will not send 
out reminders for renewals. It is 
up to the operator to renew their 

application on time. Lapsed 
market licences will be dealt with 

as new applications. 

This paragraph is deleted as we do not 
propose a renewal process. A licence will 

be granted for 12 months and a new licence 
application submitted each year as per 13.1 

   

   

 

 

 

 
 

Page 33



MC 16/02/17 v2 

Appendix 3                The Market Fees Policy and Fee Schedule 
 

 

Commercial Markets 

1. An initial administrative fee is charged as part of the market licence application process, which is 

non-refundable, regardless of the application outcome, subject to mitigating circumstances 

2. An additional fee is payable once the application has been granted by the Council 

3. The Market Licence will be for a period of 12 months after which a new application will be 

required 

 

Fee Schedule 

The fees are payable annually and are determined on the size and frequency of the market 

Number of Stalls Application Fee 
(including 1st Market) 

Additional amount 
per market 

Example annual cost for 
12 markets 

Less than 15 £100 £10 210 

15 - 24 £150 £15 315 

25 - 34 £200 £20 420 

35-44 £300 £30 630 

45 – 54  £400 £40 840 

55 - 100 £500 £50 1,050 

 

The fees have been calculated based on reasonable and proportionate estimate of the time required to 

process applications, initial site visits, draft licence agreement and ongoing costs associated with 

compliance visits, responding to enquiries, complaints and associated administration. 

 

Community- based and Charitable Markets 

1. Market events with up to 24 stalls do not require a markets licence and no fee is applicable 

2. Market events comprising 25 stalls require a market licence. A single fee of £100 is charged as 

part of the market licence application process which is non-refundable, regardless of the 

application outcome, subject to mitigating circumstances. 

3. Where a community-based or charitable market with 25 stalls or above is held more than once in 

any calendar year, an additional cost per market may apply which will be calculated using the 

‘additional amount per market’ formula contained in the fee structure table above.    

These fees are subject to the Councils fee review policy and will be reviewed every 12 months.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 34



MC 16/02/17 v2 

Appendix 4 
 
 

Equality Impact Assessment 

 
1. Under s.149 of the Equality Act 2010, when making decisions, Epping District Council must have 

regard to the Public Sector Equality Duty, ie have due regard to: 
 

 eliminating unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and other conduct 
prohibited by the Act,  

 advancing equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic 
and those who do not,  

 fostering good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those 
who do not, including tackling prejudice and promoting understanding. 

2. The characteristics protected by the Equality Act are: 

 age 

 disability  

 gender 

 gender reassignment 

 marriage/civil partnership 

 pregnancy/maternity 

 race  

 religion/belief  

 sexual orientation. 

3. In addition to the above protected characteristics you should consider the cross-cutting elements 
of the proposed policy, namely the social, economic and environmental impact (including rurality) 
as part of this assessment. These cross-cutting elements are not a characteristic protected by 
law but are regarded as good practice to include. 

4. The Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) document should be used as a tool to test and analyse 
the nature and impact of either what we do or are planning to do in the future. It can be used 
flexibly for reviewing existing arrangements but in particular should enable identification where 
further consultation, engagement and data is required. 
 

5. Use the questions in this document to record your findings. This should include the nature and 
extent of the impact on those likely to be affected by the proposed policy or change.    
 

6. Where this EqIA relates to a continuing project, it must be reviewed and updated at each stage of 
the decision.  
 

7. All Cabinet, Council, and Portfolio Holder reports must be accompanied by an EqIA. An 
EqIA should also be completed/reviewed at key stages of projects.  
 

8. To assist you in completing this report, please ensure you read the guidance notes in the Equality 
Analysis Toolkit and refer to the following Factsheets: 

 
o Factsheet 1: Equality Profile of the Epping Forest District 
o Factsheet 2: Sources of information about equality protected characteristics  
o Factsheet 3: Glossary of equality related terms 
o Factsheet 4: Common misunderstandings about the Equality Duty 
o Factsheet 5: Frequently asked questions 
o Factsheet 6: Reporting equality analysis to a committee or other decision making body  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



MC 16/02/17 v2 

 

 
 
 

Section 1: Identifying details 

Your function, service area and team: Regulatory Service; Licensing Team 

If you are submitting this EqIA on behalf of another function, service area or team, specify the 
originating function, service area or team: NA 

Title of policy or decision: EFDC Market Policy 

Officer completing the EqIA:   Tel: 07941003570    Email: sdevine@eppingforesdtc.gov.uk 

Date of completing the assessment: 12 Nov 2021 

Page 36



MC 16/02/17 v2 

Section 2: Policy to be analysed 

2.1  
Is this a new policy (or decision) or a change to an existing policy, practice or project? New 

2.2  Describe the main aims, objectives and purpose of the policy (or decision): 
The Market Policy will contribute and support the delivery of the Councils Economic Policy: 
Nurturing Growth 2020-25. In particular, the purpose of this policy is to create a market 
trading environment that compliments the surrounding area and retail offer, is sensitive to 
the needs of all users of our town centres and provides a diversity of choice for consumers. 
It seeks to encourage and stimulate investment from local traders and to create a quality 
and sustainable offer to our residents and visitors. 
The Council recognises that there are many different types of market activities and 
accordingly, the Market Policy is intended to cater for each type. In particular, the Market 
Policy distinguishes between commercial markets and those that are largely community-
based with a strong charitable element. Sections 7 & 8 of the Market Policy deals with the 
different types of market activities and sets out the Council's approach when considering 
applications in respect of such markets. It also recognises the existing Charter Markets 
already operating in Epping, Ongar and Waltham Abbey and their protected rights 
 
 
What outcome(s) are you hoping to achieve (ie decommissioning or commissioning a 
service)? 

 Recognise the importance and contribution of markets to the wellbeing of the local 
economy; 

 Enhance the economic diversity of the area; 

 Protect and, where possible, enhance the amenity and character of the District and local 
communities within it; 

 Offer opportunity for local traders and businesses; 

 Provide traders with guidance and clarity; 

 Encourage residents to spend locally on their High Streets and support their local business 
community; 

 Ensure coherence with Council policies and relevant legislation; and  

 Promote fairness, transparency and consistency. 
 
  

2.3  Does or will the policy or decision affect: 

 service users 

 employees  

 the wider community or groups of people, particularly where there are areas of known 
inequalities? 

 
The policy will affect all protected groups. This will include residents, visitors and local 
businesses;  
 
Will the policy or decision influence how organisations operate? 
 
The policy will encourage healthy competition and entrepreneurial opportunities for traders; 
there should be no adverse affects on any protected groups 

2.4  Will the policy or decision involve substantial changes in resources? 
The Policy will include a fees and charges schedule for the application of a Market Licence, 
to be paid by the market operator, reviewed annually and calculated on a cost recovery 
basis. There is unlikely to be a necessity for increased staff resources but this will be kept 
under review      

2.5  Is this policy or decision associated with any of the Council’s other policies and how, if 
applicable, does the proposed policy support corporate outcomes? 
 
The proposed Market Policy supports the Councils Economic Development Strategy 
‘Nurturing Growth’ 2020-2025 as part of the corporate strategy to “develop shared 
prosperity through growing our local economy” 

Page 37



MC 16/02/17 v2 

 

Section 3: Evidence/data about the user population and 
consultation1 

As a minimum you must consider what is known about the population likely to be affected which will 
support your understanding of the impact of the policy, eg service uptake/usage, customer satisfaction 
surveys, staffing data, performance data, research information (national, regional and local data 
sources). 

3.1 What does the information tell you about those groups identified? 
As per Equality Analysis Report submission in report to Cabinet C-037-2019/20 on 26 March 
2020 ‘Nurturing Growth – Delivering an Economic Development Plan for Epping Forest 
 

3.2 Have you consulted or involved those groups that are likely to be affected by the policy or 
decision you want to implement? If so, what were their views and how have their views 
influenced your decision? 
 
There is no statutory obligation to consult. However, a full public consultation is run from 5 
November to 6 December 2021 and the following consultees have been contacted directly: 
• The National Association of British Market Authorities (NABMA) 
• The National Market Traders Federation (NMTF) 
• Members of the Council, including Town and Parish Councils 
• Local businesses 
• Existing operators 
• Essex Police 
• Essex Fire and Rescue 
• Essex Highways 
• Essex Trading Standards 
• Epping Forest Planning Authority 
• Environmental Health 
• Relevant Council services responsible for licensing, economic regeneration, legal 
services and town centre operations 
 
The comments have been tabled in the report to Members. Several amendments have been 
made to the original draft Market Policy and the Fees Policy as a result of consultation 
responses, which in particular, are designed to reduce the administrative burden on the 
community-based and charitable markets. These are highlighted to Members   

3.3 If you have not consulted or engaged with communities that are likely to be affected by the 
policy or decision, give details about when you intend to carry out consultation or provide 
reasons for why you feel this is not necessary: 
 

                                                
 

Page 38



MC 16/02/17 v2 

 

Section 4: Impact of policy or decision 

Use this section to assess any potential impact on equality groups based on what you now know. 

Description of impact Nature of impact  
Positive, neutral, adverse  
(explain why) 

Extent of impact  
Low, medium, high  
(use L, M or H) 

Age 

Neutral The policy does not discriminate 
against nor favour any particular group but 
offers increased opportunity for prosperity 
and greater opportunities to all groups of 
society; both protected and not protected. 
This relates both to individual traders 
benefitting from the opportunity to trade 
flexibly without the usual restrictions and 
responsibilities, financial and otherwise 
associated with permanent bricks and mortar 
premises; and the local community and 
visitors who can purchase goods, often 
cheaper than high street shops, and 
providing more choice, that is accessible to 
all groups both 

L 

Disability 

Neutral As above – and also – the policy 
takes account of and includes licence 
conditions for traders that ensures that 
visibly and mobility impaired residents and 
visitors are not negatively impacted and can 
enjoy full access to markets in the same way 
as able bodied customers  

L 

Gender Neutral  comments as for Age  L 

Gender reassignment Neutral  comments as for Age  L 

Marriage/civil partnership Neutral  comments as for Age  L 

Pregnancy/maternity Neutral  comments as for Age  L 

Race Neutral  comments as for Age  L 

Religion/belief Neutral  comments as for Age  L 

Sexual orientation Neutral  comments as for Age  L 

Page 39



MC 16/02/17 v2 

 

Section 5: Conclusion 

 
Tick Yes/No 

as 
appropriate 

 

5.1 
Does the EqIA in Section 
4 indicate that the policy 
or decision would have a 
medium or high adverse 
impact on one or more 
equality groups? 

No x   

Yes  

If ‘YES’, use the action  
plan at Section 6 to describe the 
adverse impacts  
and what mitigating actions  
you could put in place. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	Minutes

	7 Princess Alexandra Hospital - progress on development of the new hospital and CQC report
	8 Proposed Epping Forest District Market Policy

